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SUMMARY

BAEBEEERARARTARRD R HKEB
REIGHIAEEDMRASMH TIIRHE :

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are pleased to announce the following
summary of results:

H1L6 8308 L&A A
For the six months ended 30 June
20104 20094 )
2010 2009 Change
Fxx FET
US$°000 Us$'000
ZERA TURNOVER 28,402 20,842 36%
EH GROSS PROFIT 18,578 14,183 31%
B 7% A PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 6,347 4,066 56%
KRB HEE AEMLET] PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 5,029 3,370 49%
BREREFN CGEM BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
(US cents) 1.5 1.1 36%

BAMAEM - NRBZEKARER2010%F4
HerHBERBR Em ((ERAFHBR L)
TEOBERER(ARERDAENENE
Al o BZE2010F6 A30H LE/SEA ([4EAfE ) -
REEFEFWAL284BEETT  MARA
BEANEMEEMNKS0RERET °

BREARBM /1.5 -

ARBEFE(EFCNYITEZRAHME
IR PR S -

We are pleased that the Company has achieved the profit forecast
as stated in the prospectus dated 27 April 2010 (the “Prospectus”)
issued by the Company during the Initial Public Offerings (“IPO”). For
the six months ended 30 June 2010 (“the Period”), the Group
recorded a revenue of approximately US$28.4 million while the profit
for the period attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately US$5.0 million.

The basic earning per share was US1.5 cents.

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company does not
recommend the payment of interim dividend for the Period.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Business Review

With the implementation of positive fiscal policies by the State, the
economy of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) continued to
experience significant growth during the first half of 2010. The strong
support given by the State to the medical and health system reform
has contributed to substantial growth in domestic demand in the PRC
pharmaceutical market. As a result of governmental measures
introduced since 2009, government will inject RMB850 billion within
3 years (2009-2011) into the healthcare industry. In addition, new
governmental initiatives require 80% participation of urban residents
countrywide in medical insurance programs, and in those areas
having better fundamentals a rate of 90% should be achieved. All
university undergraduates will also be included in the Urban
Residents Medical Insurance Program. The PRC pharmaceutical
industry should be able to maintain high growth under favorable
policy and financial support from the government leading to healthy
and stable growth in pharmaceutical sales.

To regulate the pricing of pharmaceuticals and ensure the
reasonableness and transparency for the price set by the
government, the National Development and Reform Commission
issued the draft of “Drug Price Control Measures” (the “Measures”)
for consultation with the industry, which set strict guidelines on the
domestic sale of pharmaceuticals in the PRC including the
percentage of expenses incurred, sales profit margins and the
pricing throughout the distribution channel. The implementation of
the Measures could significantly affect the profitability of
pharmaceutical companies. Although the timing and extent of these
proposed changes are unclear, we expect that the direction of this
reform will remain unchanged. The Company will mitigate the
potential impact from the implementation of the Measures by taking
remedial actions, including expanding the product range by speeding
up the development and acquisition of new pharmaceuticals;
lowering the Company’s production and marketing costs by
improving its internal management and control; and boosting the
efficiency and capacity of the sales team.
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The Measures, if implemented, may have substantial impact on all
the pharmaceutical companies in the near term. However, this would
also present opportunities for the Company to cooperate with or
acquire suitable companies or their pharmaceutical products. With
such new products, the Company should expand its sales quickly
and generate more profits and value to its shareholders. We will
emphasize the widening of our product range by way of acquisition
and product development. In the near term, we will monitor the
market closely to speed up and strengthen its acquisition efforts to
expand and enhance its product range.

In the first half of 2010, the turnover and net profit of the Company
both reached record highs with sales revenue amounting to US$28.4
million, registering a 36% increase over the corresponding period
last year. The net profit after tax was US$5.0 million, representing a
49% growth over the corresponding period last year. Profit before
tax was US$6.3 million, representing a 56% growth over the
corresponding period last year. The Company’s encouraging results
during the first half of 2010 were achieved by management and staff
focusing on the following:

Rheumatic specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals, the
core business of the Company, experienced rapid growth in
sales. During the first half of 2010, the sales of rheumatic specialty
prescription western pharmaceuticals amounted to US$18.8 million,
which contributed to 66% of the total sales of the Company and
represented a 29% growth over the corresponding period last year.
The pace of growth for the PRC rheumatic drugs market is still
relatively faster than the overall pharmaceutical market. Having
engaged in the rheumatic market for 8 years and by leveraging on
its brand, the Company is able to enjoy the benefits resulting from
the market expansion.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
INTERIM REPORT 2010
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Pafulin and Tuoshu, which are the core products of the
Company, recorded satisfactory growth in sales. Given the sharp
increase in the amount and number of people covered by medical
insurance, the Company has actively promoted the sales of Pafulin
and Tuoshu (both products are included in the State Medical
Insurance Catalogue (BIZK% 1R B %)) in the second and third-tier
cities while cooperating with the Chinese Medical Doctor Association
Division of Rheumatology (/& )% % & F BRI 5 &), a member of the
Chinese Medical Doctor’'s Association to organize the “Chinese
Rheumatic Doctor Cornerstone Development Scheme (7 B & )% %5
BRIEAMEAAZERETE). The scheme is a continual education
program aiming to nurture leading rheumatic doctors in the second
and third-tier cities. This activity contributed to Pafulin’s sales growth.
Sales of US$10.7 million were recorded during the first half of 2010,
resulting in a 40% increase compared with the same period last
year. The Company continues to adopt a highly competitive pricing
strategy for Tuoshu. Meanwhile, with more efforts being dedicated to
promotion at various academic conferences, the market for Tuoshu
continues to expand. During the first half of the year, the sales of
Tuoshu were US$4.7 million, representing a growth of 27% over the
corresponding period last year. The stable growth of these two
major products has made a major contribution to the results of the
Company.

Mycophenolate Mofetil Capsules (“MMF”), a new agency
product was launched successfully. With its highly efficient,
unique immunosuppressive effect (harmless to liver and kidneys),
MMF is used in the treatment of system lupus erythematosus and
lupus related kidney diseases and is also applicable to the treatment
of various autoimmune rheumatic diseases and other kidney
diseases, ensuring a widespread future usage in the market. The
Company officially launched the marketing program during the
Annual National Rheumatic Conference held in May. Sales of over
US$0.1 million were recorded in a little over a month’s time. This
represents the support of the rheumatic community for the Company
and the market’s recognition of MMF. It is believed that MMF will
make an important contribution to the sales and profit of the
Company in the future.

The non-core business also recorded encouraging sales growth.
Leveraging on the well established distribution channels within the
Yangtze Delta, the Company launched its distribution in lower-tier
markets, in which sales are growing at a faster pace. Meanwhile,
many of the Company’s drugs have won tenders conducted for the
National Essential Drug List in the Zhejiang Province, through which
the Company has actively expanded its sales in the Zhejiang
Province. All these developments contributed to the 53% increase in
the sales of non-core drugs with sales amounting to US$9.6 million,
which accounted for 34% of the Company’s sales.
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The above factors contributed to the solid results of the Company in
the first half of the year.

The Group’s product development and research are principally
focused on products for the treatment of autoimmune rheumatic
disease, which is our core business. As at 30 June 2010, the Group
has seven products in the pipeline. We are also launching an in-
depth development of our core product “Pafulin”, aiming to develop
new upgraded products from Pafulin with higher and broadened
effectiveness in the treatment of rheumatic disease.

The Group is committed to the strategy of collective development
and individual research and development, identifying product
acquisition opportunities, persistently enhancing the standard and
pace of the Group’s research and development. Our research
priorities are based on market demand and the latest progress in
related fields, to maintain the market value and leading status of our
products.

Future Prospects

Driven by the positive fiscal policy of the government, the PRC
economy has experienced rapid growth. Together with the RMB850
billion medical reform, the pharmaceutical market is set to expand in
2010. The autoimmune rheumatic market is still experiencing a faster
pace of growth than the overall pharmaceutical industry and the
Company has managed to maintain its leadership in the sale of
disease-modifying antirheumatic drugs (‘DMARDSs”).

Future business. For our core rheumatic business, the Company
plans to implement a more aggressive marketing strategy for our
established brands as follows: develop closer cooperation with
various associations and rheumatic specialists to jointly promote the
development of rheumatic know-how while actively engaging in
patient education; increase penetration of the second and third-tier
markets.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
INTERIM REPORT 2010
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The strategy for the Company’s non-core business will closely follow
the State’s policy of promoting the basic healthcare insurance
programs to fully cover urban as well as rural residents. We will set
our sights on the affluent areas within the Yangtze Delta region. We
will also accelerate the sale of drugs covered by the National
Essential Drug List in the Zhejiang Province and strengthen the cost
control over the production of non-core drugs so as to increase the
overall profit contribution from this segment of our business.

Future Development Plan. The Company is determined to maintain
its leading status in the DMARDs market by introducing more new
products and increasing its market share. To penetrate into other
segments of the rheumatic drugs market, we will leverage on our
existing presence, brand awareness and substantial marketing
network, to market biological agents, hormones and anti-
inflammatory and analgesic drugs which we plan to acquire or
develop. Based on the experience we have obtained in treating
autoimmune rheumatic diseases, we will over time carefully enter
into other immune disease related drug markets.

We are determined to develop the second and third-tier markets by
collaborating with rheumatic associations and rheumatic doctor
associations to nurture more rheumatology specialists. We will
expand our marketing network by launching continual education
programs for doctors in the second and third-tier cities. Together
with the rheumatic department of hospitals, we will meet regularly
with patient groups to increase the number of patients who rely on
our drugs on a long-term basis. We will strive to boost the sales of
the Company’s products while creating value for our shareholders.

Looking forward, the Company is optimistic about the growth
of the PRC pharmaceutical market and plans to seize business
opportunities arising from the surging demand for
pharmaceuticals. The Company is aiming to strengthen its
competitive edge by optimizing and enhancing its product
portfolios to maximize shareholder returns.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of US$28.4 million (30 June 2009:
US$20.8 million) for the six months ended 30 June 2010,
representing an increase of 36% over the corresponding period last
year.

The increase in the Group’s revenue during the Period was mainly
attributable to the stable growth in income from its two core
rheumatic specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals, Pafulin
and Tuoshu, as well as the sustained development of its non-core
businesses. Supported by the Chinese government’s increasing
efforts to improve the quality of public healthcare, the Group further
expanded its sales and distribution network in the second and third-
tier cities and cooperated with medical societies to extend the
training for rheumatic professionals. This resulted in stable growth for
the Group’s rheumatic prescription products. With the launch of the
Essential Drug List by the Chinese government and leveraging on
the well established distribution channels in the well-off Yangtze
River Delta region, the Group’s non-core businesses had achieved
rapid growth.

Other Income

Other income, including interest income and government subsidies,
amounted to US$0.9 million for the six months ended 30 June 2010,
representing an increase of 98% over US$0.5 million recorded in the
corresponding period last year. This increase was mainly attributable
to the Ningbo government’s award of US$0.5 million to the Group
for its successful listing.

Selling and Distribution Expenses and Administration
Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consisted of i) promotion
costs through holding seminars, conferences and related expenses;
i) staff costs; and iii) rental expenses. For the six months ended 30
June 2010, selling and distribution expenses amounted to US$8.7
million, increased from approximately US$7.8 million in the
corresponding period last year. The increase was mainly attributable
to the increased promotion costs.

Administrative expenses including staff salaries, depreciation
expenses and other general administration expenses amounted to
US$4.1 million, representing an increase of 65% over US$2.5 million
recorded in the corresponding period last year. The increase was
mainly attributable to the listing related expenses of US$0.6 million.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
INTERIM REPORT 2010

11



12

EEEFWRON

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RRAEBAEMGER

R E £2010F68308 L /NEA - KARIEA
A FEMR S M E X F RIHIGAE B 3 T 18 1149%
FE50HBFET °

EEES

RE E2010F6A30H IE/NA A » REEWTF
EAEHA788 - AFRHAI AL3H - A
BN EZRAAAE B RMEHE
BERERNBENAETERREMAE
GFREUBRESRANTLE -

RE 201066 A30H LA A - AEBE M E
s AE (REE SR E R ERER)
A1228 - = F R BB A1338 - [F & 8 4E R
NEERAARE— L NAEARFPERE -

RE E2010F6A30H LA A - AEBE K&
NFBERAEE A8H - =FREERIA130H -
AEBERNEZERASAHEEN RS
BEREELR AEEXHHECEEERS
HEENEEBEAYE NERRENEE
(R

B B B IR IR A
—T-TERHRE

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2010 grew by 49% to US$5.0 million as compared
to US$3.4 million for the same period last year.

Working Capital

The inventory turnover of the Group was 78 days for the six months
ended 30 June 2010 as compared to 53 days for the same period
last year. The increase in the turnover was mainly attributable to the
upward trend for prices of raw materials in the PRC during the
Period, which led to our stocking up inventory of raw materials for
our major products in order to minimize the cost impact.

The Group’s debtors’ turnover (including both trade and bills
receivables) was 122 days for the six months ended 30 June 2010
as compared to 133 days for the same period last year. The
decrease in turnover days was mainly attributable to the Group’s
effort in reinforcing customer management.

The Group’s creditors’ turnover was 98 days for the six months
ended 30 June 2010 as compared to 130 days for the same period
last year. The decrease in turnover days was mainly attributable to
the Group’s efforts to reduce the credit period for settlement with
suppliers in return for more competitive prices to cope with the
general increase in the price of raw materials.
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IPO Proceeds

On 7 May 2010, the Company was successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. The IPO was well received by
investors through both the international placing and the Hong Kong
public offer. On 28 May 2010, the sole Bookrunner on behalf of the
international underwriters exercised an over-allotment option granted
by the Company to the Sole Global Coordinator and 15 million
shares in the share capital of the Company were issued to cover
over-allotment in the international placing. The total net proceeds
received by the Company from the IPO, after netting of share issue
costs, was approximately HK$408.9 million (equivalent to
approximately US$52.5 million).

As disclosed in the Prospectus issued by the Company, the Group
intends to use the proceeds for product development and research,
funding the acquisition of pharmaceutical companies and/or
purchase of production technologies or product approvals, increasing
production capacity, expansion of sales and distribution network and
general working capital.

Foreign Currency Risk

The majority of the Group’s businesses are in the PRC and are
denominated in RMB, HKD and USD. The Group is of the opinion
that its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk is limited.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group is financed by share capital, internally-generated funds
and external borrowings.

The cash and cash equivalents amounted to US$36.7 million as at
30 June 2010 (31 December 2009: US$4.1 million). As at 30 June
2010, the Group recorded borrowings of US$8.2 million (31
December 2009: US$19.3 million).
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Cash Flows

For the six months ended 30 June 2010, net cash inflow from
operating activities amounted to US$2.3 milion (30 June 2009:
US$0.9 million), attributable primarily to increased cash inflow from
the Company’s revenue.

Net cash used in investing activities for the six months ended 2010
amounted to US$6.0 million (30 June 2009: US$0.2 million),
consisting primarily of pledged bank deposits of US$4.1 million and
purchase of property, plant and equipment of US$1.5 million.

Net cash generated from financing activities for the six months
ended 2010 were US$36.2 million, consisting primarily of net
proceeds from listing of US$53.1 million, net repayments of
borrowings of US$11.2 million and payments of dividends of US$5.4
million.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

There were no other material acquisitions or disposals of any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures of the Group during the six
months ended 30 June 2010.

Contingent Liabilities

During the six months ended 30 June 2010, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has engaged in any litigation or arbitration
of material importance and, so far as the Directors are aware, no
litigation or arbitration of material importance is pending or
threatened against the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Charges on Assets

As at 30 June 2010, certain bank deposits, building and plant, and
land use rights in an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
US$ 8.8 million (31 December 2009: US$ 12.4 million) were pledged
to secure the banking facilities and borrowings.

Capital Expenditure
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment for the first six

months of 2010 was US$1.5 million, compared to US$0.7 million in
the same period of 2009.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Listed Securities of
the Company

During the six months ended 30 June 2010, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the listed
securities of the Company. In addition, the Company has not
redeemed any of its listed securities during the Period.

LISTING OF THE SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

The shares of the Company have been successfully listed on the
Stock Exchange since 7 May 2010. The total number of issued
shares of the Company as at 7 May 2010 was 400,000,000.

On 28 May 2010, the over-allotment options were exercised,
15,000,000 over-allotment shares were issued and allotted by the
Company. The total number of issued shares of the Company
increased to 415,000,000 shares immediately after the issue of the
over-allotment shares.

As at 30 June 2010 and the date of this report, the total number of
issued shares was 415,000,000 shares.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend any interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2010.

EMPLOYEE

The Group has over 600 employees as at 30 June 2010. Salaries of
employees have been maintained at a competitive level and are
reviewed annually, with reference to the relevant labor market and
economic situation.

The Group has not experienced any significant problems with its
employees or disruption to its operations due to labor disputes nor
has it experienced any difficulty in the recruitment and retention of
experienced staff. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 7 May 2010.
No disclosure of interests or short positions of any Directors and/or
chief executives of the Company in any shares (the “Shares”),
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) were required to be made
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO as of 30 June 2009.

As at the date of this report, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and/or chief executives of the Company in any Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which are
required, pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be
entered in the register kept by the Company, or which are required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) are as follows:

N
E=EB ERtE BENRGEE BHABED
Approximate
Number of  percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interests shares held interest
Cikza)
(note 1)
2R s m AFE2) 48,830,000 (L) 1.77%
Liu Xiao Dong Beneficiary of a trust (note 2)
RE st X = A (K EE2) 48,830,000 (L) 1.77%
Xu Jun Beneficiary of a trust (note 2)
FEmR EnEAA 300,000 (L) 0.08%
Lee JinYi Beneficial owner
Stephen Burnau Hunt ExnEAA 100,000 (L) 0.03%

Beneficial owner

B B B IR IR A
—T-TERHRE
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Note 1:  The letter “L” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the Shares.

Note 2:  Ever Sail, acting as trustee of a discretionary trust set up for the benefit of certain
management personnel and employees of the Group and/or their respective
family and/or charity organization (“the Management Trust”). Mr. Xu Jun and Mr.
Liu Xiao Dong, who are beneficiaries of the Management Trust, are deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Ever Sail.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would be required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 7 May 2010.
No disclosure of interests or short positions in any Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company were required to be made to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO as of 30 June 2009.
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As at the date of this report, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company), who have interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company in accordance with the provision of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, are as follows:

FE* BEW LSRN
EEEEEE ROEBE BOBEIL
Approximate

Number of  percentage

Name of shareholder Nature of interests shares held of interest
(BF &%)
(note 1)

R EEEERBEE(FRE)ERAHE EmiEs 209,820,000 (L) 50.56%

(TEIZ= B R B8 B () ) (MY RE2)

Beneficial interest

Cathay International Pharma Manufacture and Distribution

(China) Limited (“Cl Pharma China”) (note 2)

B 2= B8 % A 1 5% 1l e 2 25 (R D) B PR A A ZEAE R 209,820,000 (L) 50.56%
("B 2= B BR A 9 g I 2 25 (R B ) (Y 32) Interest of a controlled
Cathay International Biotechnology & Pharmaceutical (China) corporation
Limited (“Cl Biotech & Pharma China”) (note 2)
BB B AR A A (B ZR B 2 % ) (M 2) REEEER 209,820,000 (L) 50.56%
Cathay International Pharmaceutical Limited (“CIP”) (note 2) Interest of a controlled
corporation
BEREREMEMBERABD(EREREYFEMDMEF) SEEE#ER 209,820,000 (L) 50.56%
Cathay International Biotech Company Limited (“CIB”) (note 2) Interest of a controlled
corporation
Cathay International Holdings Limited ([CIH])(Fif3£2) (note 2) S AE# &= 209,820,000 (L) 50.56%
Interest of a controlled
corporation
Cathay International Enterprises Limited (Fff 7£3) (note 3) EErEER 209,820,000 (L) 50.56%
Interest of a controlled
corporation
Barclays Private Bank & Trust (Cayman) Ltd. XEA 209,820,000 (L) 50.56%
(Bt 5£4) (note 4) Trustee
Cathay International Biotechnology and Pharmaceutical R EER 209,820,000 (L) 50.56%
(China) Limited Interest of a controlled
corporation
Wu Zhen Tao (Fff 5%4) (note 4) DREETTEIIAR 209,820,000 (L) 50.56%
BFREZEA

8= (M 5E5)
Cheng Hoo (note 5)

Loyal Peace Enterprises Limited (Fff 5£5) (note 5)

KM ABRAF (M 5E5)
Ever Sail Limited (note 5)

BEBRERRARA A
TSRS

Founder of discretionary

trusts and beneficiary

of a trust
REEEER 48,830,000 (1) 11.77%
Interest of a controlled

corporation
ey 48,830,000 (L) 11.77%
Beneficial interest
EA 48,830,000 (L) 11.77%
Trustee
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The letter “L” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the Shares.

These Shares are held by Cl Pharma China. Cl Pharma China is owned as to 18%
by CIC and 82% by CI Biotech & Pharma China. CIC is in turn owned as to 100%
by Cl Biotech & Pharma China. Cl Biotech & Pharma China is in turn wholly owned
by CIP. CIP is wholly owned by CIB, which in turn is wholly owned by CIH.
Therefore, CIC, Cl Biotech & Pharma China, CIP, CIB, and CIH are deemed to be
interested in these Shares.

CIH is held as to approximately 60.99% by Cathay International Enterprises Limited.
Therefore, Cathay International Enterprises Limited is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by ClI Pharma China.

The entire issued share capital of Cathay International Enterprises Limited is held
by Barclays Private Bank & Trust (Cayman) Ltd. acting as the trustee of the trust set
up by Mr. Wu Zhen Tao for the benefit of Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and members of his
family (“Wu Family Trust”). Mr. Wu Zhen Tao as founder of the Wu Family Trust is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Cathay International Enterprises
Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Loyal Peace Enterprises Limited is held by Ever
Sail Limited acting as the trustee of the Management Trust whom in turn is wholly
owned by Mr. Cheng Hoo. Therefore, Mr. Cheng Hoo is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Loyal Peace Enterprises Limited.

Save as disclosed herein, as at the date of this report, our Directors
are not aware of any person (who is not a Director or chief executive
of our Company) who has an interest or short position in the Shares
or the underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to our
Company under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions and
recommended best practices under the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the period from 7 May
2010 to 30 June 2010.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions of the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings specified in the Model Code (“Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all of them have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
and the Company’s own code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions adopted since the Company’s listing.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee. Members of the
audit committee include two non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee
Jin Yi and Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca, and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael (Chairman),
Mr. Robert Peter Thian, and Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond.

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with the
management of the Company the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed and reviewed
auditing and financial matters, including major internal control
procedures and the interim results for the Period.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the remuneration committee in
accordance with the requirements of Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules to ensure there is a formal and transparent procedure in place
for setting policy on the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management.
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Members of the remuneration committee include two non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Chairman) and Mr. Stephen Burnau
Hunt, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Robert Peter Thian, Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael and Mr. Tang Chiu
Ping, Raymond.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has established the executive committee, which is
responsible for reviewing the financials and financial-related matters
as well as issues regarding the management, operations and risk
management of the Company and any matters which are within the
ordinary course of the Company’s business under the control and
supervision of the Board.

Currently, the members of the executive committee include three
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Chairman), Ms. Yip
Pui Ling Rebecca, and Ms. Tao Fang Fang, and two executive
Directors, namely Mr. Xu Jun and Mr. Liu Xiao Dong.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Group’s consolidated interim financial statements have been
audited by Grant Thornton, the auditors of the Company, in
accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. The
comparative figures in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, and the
consolidated statement of cash flows in respect of the six months
ended 30 June 2009 and the related notes disclosed in consolidated
interim financial statements are derived from the management
accounts of the Group and have not been audited.
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o Grant Thornton

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

To the Board of Directors of
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages
24 to 92, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 30 June 2010, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the six months ended 30 June 2010, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 30 June 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the six
months ended 30 June 2010 in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw your attention to the fact
that the corresponding figures set out in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the related
notes for the six months ended 30 June 2009 have not been
audited.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
6th Floor, Nexxus Building
41 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

26 August 2010

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
INTERIM REPORT 2010
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

B £2010%F # £ 2009F
6H30H Lt 6H30H 1k
A~E A ~ME A
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2010 2009
B 3 FEx FET
Note US$’000 US$'000
(R #EZ)
(Unaudited)
A Revenue 4 28,402 20,842
A=W Cost of sales (9,824) (6,659)
EF Gross profit 18,578 14,183
H g A Other income 4 940 475
HERDHAX Selling and distribution expenses (8,709) (7,792)
THRX Administrative expenses (4,115) (2,496)
R R Profit from operations 6 6,694 4,370
% ER Finance costs 7 (347) (304)
FriE B anE R Profit before income tax 6,347 4,066
FIiSsMim= Income tax expense 8 (1,318) (696)
HA 3 A Profit for the period 5,029 3,370
Ht2EUWK A Other comprehensive income
MEFIINEBEEZ Exchange differences arising on
fEHZ% translation of foreign operations 387 (37)
HREMEERA Other comprehensive income for
(HNFR A 1E) the period, net of tax 387 37)
HREZEWBRALE Total comprehensive income for
the period 5,416 3,333
AATHEE AEAEER Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 9 5,029 3,370
AATEEANELEEZE Total comprehensive income
WA attributable to owners of the
Company 5,416 3,333
BRERN — EX Earnings per share — Basic 11 1.51L cents 1111 cents
24 BAE B EEIERB R DA
e N
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

7201046 A30H
As at 30 June 2010

20104 20094
6H30H 12 A31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
M 2 FEx FET
Note US$’000 US$000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
W REREZE Property, plant and equipment 13 18,127 16,951
4 b5 R Land use rights 14 2,389 2,398
BIVEE Intangible assets 15 8,146 7,663
EES Goodwill 16 6,824 6,824
35,486 33,836
RBEE Current assets
rE Inventories 17 4,604 3,852
B 5 I B A e R IE Trade and other receivables 18 24,615 20,592
T fE AR Land use rights 14 53 53
EEFRITER Pledged bank deposits 19 4,874 800
BeMkBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 19 36,704 4,055
70,850 29,352
BEE Total assets 106,336 63,188
EzRkB8E EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EXRf#EE Capital and reserves
EAREEANELESR Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
& A< Share capital 20 4,150 29,491
& 17 % (B Share premium 21 68,541 14
|ERE g Treasury shares = (6,605)
B 5 & Exchanges equalisation reserve 21 3,174 2,787
EE R Statutory reserve 21 1,298 704
R E N Retained profits 8,771 3,565
R Total equity 85,934 29,956

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
INTERIM REPORT 2010
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mEMBRRE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

7201046 A30H
As at 30 June 2010

201045 20094
6HA30H 12A31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
B 5 FTEx FTETT
Note US$’000 US$'000
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
BE Borrowings 22 = 10,407
EXEHIBBAEE Deferred tax liabilities 23 394 394
394 10,801
REBAE Current liabilities
BE Borrowings 22 8,191 8,881
mERIEAE Current tax liabilities 923 258
ENRZRNB AR KIE Amount due to a fellow subsidiary 25 = 311
E5 & E A B FRIE Trade and other payables 24 10,894 12,981
20,008 22,431
waE Total liabilities 20,402 33,232
BEZRES Total equity and liabilities 106,336 63,188
RBEEFREE Net current assets 50,842 6,921
HEERARBEE Total assets less current
liabilities 86,328 40,757
26 BAAE B BT IR AR A R
LY EE



BB AR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

7201046 A30H
As at 30 June 2010

201045 20094
6HA30H 12A31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
B TEx TE
Note US$’000 US$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
RETB AR 2w Interests in a subsidiary 12 25,020 —
REBEE Current assets
NI R Q| Amount due from a subsidiary 12 33,285 —
AR Prepayments 18 9 16
ReMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 19 14,061 —
47,355 16
HEE Total assets 72,375 16
ExRkEE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
AR EEANELEER Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company
fi% 7 Share capital 20 4,150 —
& =B Share premium 21 68,541 —
2 EE Accumulated losses 21 (633) —
R Total equity 72,058 —
REBAME Current liabilities
JE A BT /B A B) B TE Amount due to a subsidiary 12 = 16
FEsrE A Accruals 24 317 —
FER =R Total liabilities 317 16
BEEREE Total equity and liabilities 72,375 16
REBEEFHE Net current assets 47,038 —
HWEERABARS Total assets less current
liabilities 72,058 —

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

INTERIM REPORT 2010
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

H 2201096 A30H [E/NE A

For the six months ended 30 June 2010

B £2010%F # £ 2009F
6H30H Lt 6H30H 1k
A~E A ~E A
Six months Six months
ended 30 June  ended 30 June
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$’°000 US$'000
(CRggzEZ)
(Unaudited)
REKEEBNESRE Cash flows from operating activities
FfT 5 ¢ Al A Profit before income tax 6,347 4,066
P Adjustments for:
EERNEER Finance costs recognised 347 304
FLEM A Interest income (25) (133)
JFE L SR T Rk (B R A Provision for impairment of receivables 256 81
M- BMEREKEBITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 484 423
T b 5B PR AR Amortisation of land use rights 29 24
HEWE - HBER Loss on disposals of property, plant and
B equipment 17 4
B & E M Write off of intangible assets = 15
PREFT & &E Provision for obsolete inventories 15 —
LEEREERA 2 KE R Operating profit before working capital
changes 7,470 4,784
FEEM Increase in inventories (735) (357)
H 5 I H th & U 5K I8 18 0 Increase in trade and other receivables (4,113) (4,619)
B 5 K HAth JE S FRIEIZ N Increase in trade and other payables 719 1,829
MEELEHE Cash generated from operations 3,341 1,637
2 F & Interest paid (391) (304)
B FTEE Income tax paid (653) (399)
AL TEEL W& FEE Net cash generated from operating activities 2,297 934

PR B IR A R A A
—E-TERERE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

B £2010%F # £ 2009F
6H30H Lt 6H30H 1k
~E B ~E A
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$°000 US$'000
(R #EZ)
(Unaudited)
RETBEECHESRE Cash flows from investing activities
EHEBRITFERCEEM), (Increase)/decrease in pledged bank
Ve deposits (4,074) 725
BEME BEK Purchase of property, plant and equipment
B (1,494) (719)
BERVEE Purchase of intangible assets (420) (370)
2 H 5 Interest received 25 133
KEZEHAE L FE Net cash used in investing activities (5,963) (231)
REBMEFEZ Cash flows from financing activities
Re&RE
BEEMERE Proceeds from borrowings 9,942 3,089
BEEERE Repayment of borrowings (21,121) (2,268)
EEEEENE Repayment from management = 328
BITREMBRIE Proceeds from issue of shares 57,721 —
BOIROEENER Expenses incurred in connection with the
issue of shares (4,660) —
e FEAT [R) K BT B A 7] Movements in amounts due from/to fellow
KR subsidiaries (311) (6,736)
BB E Dividend paid (5,390) (374)
BETEELS Net cash generated from/used in) financing
BB & 758 activities 36,181 (5,961)
ReRREeEEYD Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
RO equivalents 32,515 (5,258)
HRE & Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
ReEEY period 4,055 9,103
EXEH B Effects of exchange rate changes 134 @31)
HREER Cash and cash equivalents at end of
REeZEY period 36,704 3,814

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

ERTE
(&S B0 E EBFRG e EERE REBF B
Exchange
Share Share Treasury  equalisation Statutory Retained Total
capital premium shares reserve reserve profits equity
FEx FTEx FET FET FET FET FEx
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
20101 A1B M4 & Balance at 1 January 2010 29,491 14 (6,605) 2,787 704 3,565 29,956
SEEAMELE Arising on group reorganisation (26,491) 22,006 4,485 - - -
B AT 0 5% D AR 1 Issue of earn-out shares - - 2,120 - - - 2,120
W ARE Write off of contingent consideration - - - - - 77 77
BT Issue of shares 1,150 56,571 - - - - 57,721
BORGAEENER Expenses incurred in connection with the
issue of shares - (4,660) - - - - (4,660)
5 31 AR 2. (BT 7£10) Special dividend (note 10) - (5,390) - - - - (5,390)
HEBARARS Transactions with owners (25,341) 68,527 6,605 = = 77 50,562
H s 7l Profit for the period - - - - - 5,029 5,029
Hip2EUEA Other comprehensive income - - - 387 - - 387
HANZEBABE Total comprehensive income for the period - - - 387 - 5,029 5,416
HEREETHE Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - 594 (594) -
20106 A308 M 4 Balance at 30 June 2010 4,150 68,541 - 3,174 1,298 8,771 85,934
H2009F1 1B K & &5 Balance at 1 January 2009 29,491 14 (13,115) 2,823 576 2,953 22,742
BATHI MEE @R (RAEZ|4Z)  Issue of earn-out shares (unaudited) - - 2,744 - - — 2,744
AR B (REER) Scrip issue (unaudited) - - 3,766 - - - 3,766
20084 K Hifk B (CREE &) 2008 final dividend (unaudited)

(B #£10) (note 10) - - - - - (3,340) (3,340)
HIEAAEITTRS (RIEFEZ)  Transactions with owners (unaudited) — — 6,510 — — (3,340) 3,170
BREF(REFEZR) Profit for the period (unaudited) - — - — — 3,370 3,370
Hi 2 EWACREER) Other comprehensive income (unaudited) - — — 37) - - 37)
HAN2ERABE Total comprehensive income for the period

(RIEER) (unaudited) - - - (37) — 3,370 3,333
20096 A30R &) # &4 Balance at 30 June 2009

(REER) (unaudited) 29,491 14 (6,605) 2,786 576 2,983 29,245
20091 1R #4584 Balance at 1 January 2009 29,491 14 (13,115) 2,823 576 2,953 22,742
BEATH A0 52 ) AR 1D Issue of earn-out shares - - 2,744 - - - 2,744
20084 K E I & 2008 final dividend - - - - - (3,340) (3,340)
LARRAC & Scrip issue - - 3,766 - - - 3,766
2009F AR & 2009 interim dividend - - - — - (3,300) (3,300)
HEBANETRS Transactions with owners - - 6,510 - - (6,640) (130)
F & Al Profit for the year - - - - - 7,380 7,380
Hi2EHRA Other comprehensive income - - - (36) - - (36)
FEXEBANBE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (36) - 7,380 7,344
HEZEEHAE Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - 128 (128) -
200912 A31H M & #4 Balance at 31 December 2009 29,491 14 (6,605) 2,787 704 3,565 29,956
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 10 September 2009 and its shares were listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
on 7 May 2010. The Company’s registered office is located at
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street P. O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal place of
business is located at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po Chun
Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are manufacturing
and trading of pharmaceutical products.

The Company is a subsidiary of Cathay International Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda and whose
shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange. The directors
consider the ultimate holding company to be Cathay
International Enterprises Limited which is incorporated in
Bermuda.

The financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2010 were approved for issue by the broad of directors on
26 August 2010.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 31
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B R R AR BT EE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

2. FESTHHREE
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21

Basis of preparation

Through a group reorganisation to rationalise the
structure of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) in preparation for
the listing of the Company’s shares (the “Group
Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding
company of the Group on 21 April 2010. Details of the
Group Reorganisation are more fully explained in the
paragraph headed “Reorganisation” in the section
headed “History, Reorganisation and Group Structure” of
the prospectus of the Company dated 27 April 2010 (the
“Prospectus”). The Group resulting from the Group
Reorganisation is regarded as a continuing entity.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared using the principles of merger accounting.
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the six months
ended 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2009 have been
prepared on the basis as if the current group structure
had been in existence throughout the periods. The
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2009 has been prepared to present
the assets and liabilities of the companies now
comprising the Group as if the current group structure
had been in existence as at that date.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 24 to 92
have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations as
approved by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”), and all applicable individual International
Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and Interpretations as
originated by the Board of the International Accounting
Standards Committee and adopted by the IASB. It also
complies with the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

2. TESTTHERBEHE)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting policies below.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
United States Dollars (‘US$”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

It should be noted that the preparation of consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs requires the
use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates and assumptions. The areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements or areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity are set out in note 3
“Critical accounting estimates and judgements”.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the periods presented unless otherwise stated.

The Group has applied the revised and amended IFRSs
which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January
2010. The adoption of the revised and amended IFRSs had
no material impact on how the results and financial position
for the current and prior periods have been prepared and
presented.

The following new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing IFRSs have been published but
are not yet effective for annual period beginning on 1
January 2010 and have not been adopted early by the
Group.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

2. TESTHHRBE(E)

21 RREEE(E)
B e A A BEALTHE
F245 (KIEET)
Eilos-fapl B B 7 482
ERFEFTF)
BEBBEREEN BAEMERBE
F1R(BETA) RS2l
ETHRRELR
HFZERH R
BIRgHRER $MIAS
Bl
BRGERE2RE REASFRM
ZEBEUR BB
(&I A)
BRyBsRERE URKTAKEHN
ZEEE19% BafEe
RS BREEL HENEREE
WR 0105 FEH R
B 3

i B2010% 7818 K201 A1 (1@
Bk 2 B FRENTE B AR

2 20102 A1B sk 2 4 F A 2 F &
HAR A R

8 R2010F7AR S 2 8 e 2 FE
HART A4 K

4 MR2ONMF1A1E Sk 2 B8R h 2 FE
BRI &

° R201I3F1A1IE Sk 2 8 AR 2 FE
HAR A R

E=RY AN RGBT
BB REEAER AMER
RHEAAEERRBAALSE
EEBEK - EFHF LG
% B HE] M AR AE RT H B BR B 75 R
ERAMEE  HEDREFRPL
EHAI REETBRRMEREE
AgERNE-—FRABHAEHE
XELYBRRNBEREATZE -

BB R RARAF

34

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures*

IAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues?

IFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited Exemption from
Comparative IFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters®

IFRS 9 Financial Instrument®

IFRIC 14 (Amendment) Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement*

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments®

Improvements to IFRSs  Annual Improvements to IFRSs

2010'

Notes:

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 and 1
January 2011, as appropriate

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The directors anticipate that all these new or revised
IFRSs will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy
for the first period beginning after the effective date of
the pronouncement. The directors are currently assessing
the possible impact of these news or revised IFRSs but
are not yet in a position to state whether these new or
revised IFRSs would have a significant impact on the
Group’s results and financial position in the first year of
application.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to control
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are excluded from
consolidation from the date that control ceases.

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition of
subsidiaries (other than those under common control) is
accounted for by applying the purchase method. This
involves the estimation of fair value of all identifiable
assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless of whether
or not they were recorded in the financial statements of
the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial recognition,
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position at their
fair values, which are also used as the bases for
subsequent measurement in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment loss
unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included in a
disposal group. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit
or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition represents the excess
of the cost of a business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquirees
recognised at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially
recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwiill
has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of
the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and the use
by others of the Group’s assets yielding interest, net of
discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
customer. This is usually taken as the time when the
goods are delivered and the customer has accepted the
goods.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24

2.5

2.6

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
by reference to the principal outstanding and the
effective interest method.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

Operating lease rental payments are charged directly to
the statement of comprehensive income on an accruals
basis.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group entity
are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (its functional
currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of each
Group entity are expressed in United States Dollar, which
is the functional currency of the Company and the
presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual
entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at
the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At each reporting date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences which relate to assets under
construction for future productive use, which are
included in the cost of those assets where they
are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
foreign currency borrowings;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Foreign currencies (Continued)

° exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur,
which form part of the net investment in a foreign
operation, and which are recognised in the
exchange equalisation reserve and recognised in
profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are expressed in United States Dollar
using exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date.
Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified
as equity and transferred to the Group’s exchange
equalisation reserve. Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Accounting for income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilised the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense
or income in profit or loss, except when they relate to
items credited or debited directly to equity, in which
case the tax is also recognised directly in equity, or
where they arise from the initial accounting for a
business combination. In the case of a business
combination, the tax effect is taken into account in
calculating goodwill or in determining the excess of the
acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
cost of the business combination.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment on a systematic basis over their
estimated useful lives. The major categories of property,
plant and equipment are depreciated as follows:

Building and Plant 20-50 years
Machinery 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-12 years
Furniture and equipment 5-15 years

The assets’ residual values, depreciation method and
estimated useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of the reporting period.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Assets in the course of construction for production or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional
fees and for qualifying assets, borrowing cost capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

212

Land use rights

Land use rights represent up-front payments to acquire
long term interest in the usage of land. The payments
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
between 40 to 50 years.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and
research and development activities

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised
initially at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is provided on straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences
when the intangible assets are available for use.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment annually.

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in
the profit or loss as they occur. An intangible asset
arising from development expenditure on an individual
project is recognised provided they meet the following
recognition requirements:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(i) there is intention to complete the intangible asset

and use or sell it;

(i)  the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible

asset is demonstrated;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and
research and development activities (Continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)
(ivy the intangible asset will generate probable
economic benefits through internal use or sale;

sufficient technical, financial and other resources
are available for completion; and

(vi)  the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
can be reliably measured.

Development expenditure which does not meet the
above criteria is expensed when incurred.

Capitalised development costs that have a finite useful
life are amortised from the commencement of the
commercial production of the product on a straight-line
basis over the period of its expected benefit. Capitalised
development costs with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
that have a finite useful life to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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214

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the assets.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss of tangible and intangible
assets (other than goodwill) subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of any
depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and,
where applicable, direct labour costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets comprise loans and
receivables.

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, reevaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Regular way purchases of financial
assets are recognised on trade date. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets expire or
are transferred and substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred.

Loans and receivables

Bills receivables, trade and other receivables and bank
balances that have fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market are classified as
loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment. Interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would be
immaterial.



B RSERARMIEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

2. TESTHHRBE(E)

215 €@ T A (E)

BB L%

ERMBADNFAESREE#H
18 B 7R R 4R A HA FR] o0 B ) B
AHITE - BERF R B T
TRMEENEFFHAR(ER)
BREEMA - SEFREESK
ABEAEBRERMEE—&
DTHENEREKRHBHER X5
P AN B B A it B S T AR T B A
A o

THMEESGRBEARSHRIE
ERARERR EREERA
FERBRTEREEZEBDR
KEERE RN LR %
ERMEERBLEZ-BAHZESE
HMm2NFE  (FHRE- BE
cRREEREERMG RKRE
TRERENZRE AREHE
ENRERMEE -

AT ETSEBREZLEZRE
EWMESERKRBA)ME  Hig
SRE ORI AREE - BERFRA
HAELBHREZEBERRER
SERTUFER HanaH
FHEEHRNEAZE—FIZH
BT BRI EEEMR D
3B 7R B 8 BUK AE W [0 R WK
Ig o

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the report period. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been impacted. The amount of the impairment is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets, such as trade receivables, that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
normally ranging from six months to one year, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

In a subsequent period, if the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the financial asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities are obligations to pay cash or other
financial assets including borrowings, trade and other
payables and amounts due to related companies are
recognised when the Group becomes party to the
contractual obligations of the instrument and are initially
recorded at fair value, net of issue costs. They are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and
in hand.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on the
issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated
with the issuing of shares are deducted from share
premium (net of any related income tax benefit) to the
extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to
the equity transaction.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

217

218

Share capital (Continued)

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (Treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the
shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the equity
holders of the Company.

Related parties

For the purposes of the consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control the
Group or exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(ivy the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a
close family member of such an individual, or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

218

219

Related parties (Continued)
(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under IFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial information prepared under IFRSs.

2.20 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate. Government grants
relating to the purchase of assets are included in
liabilities as deferred government grants in the statement
of financial position and are recognised in profit or loss
on a straight line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in
gross under “Other income” in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

The estimates and underlying assumptions used in the
preparation of these financial statements are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based on
assessment of the recoverability of receivables from debtors.
The identification of the impairment requires management
judgements and estimates where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the carrying value of the
receivables and impairment losses/reversal of impairment
losses in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The directors estimate the intangible assets, which represented
the intellectual property rights in pharmaceutical industry, have
indefinite useful lives as they believe that there is no
foreseeable limit on the period of time over which these
intellectual property rights is expected to provide cash flows
and these intellectual property rights can be renewable in a
period of time at minimal cost and the products are continuing
in the market.
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, which is also the Group’s

R H AU AT - turnover, and other income for the periods are as follows:
B £20105F B F 20094
6H30H It 6H30H 1k
~E B 7~ E A
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2010 2009
TEx FET
US$°000 US$'000
(REEEZ)
(Unaudited)
HEEmMMWBA Revenue from sales of goods 28,402 20,842
Hp e A Other income
BB & Government grants 913 339
WA R BEFAEBED Interest income on financial assets not
TREEMNFERA at fair value through profit or loss 25 133
EAfb Others 2 3
940 475

AEBEREPEARAMB(HE]D M
TRFRENBDEUIFERRE
an BY B 3 o WREL A 4 BY & T B S AE
fER A -

The Group was entitled to receive grants from a People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) local government to support the
development of high technology products. The grants received
were not subject to any conditions.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on its product types and has two
reportable operating segments as follows:

o Rheumatic specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals;
° Other pharmaceuticals.

Management monitors the results of its business units
separately for the purpose of making decision about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on the results from the reportable
segments as explained in the table below.

B £2010F6HA30H L B A
Six months ended 30 June 2010
ERER
B Hi#m At
Rheumatic
specialty
prescription
western Other
pharmaceuticals pharmaceuticals Total
FER FER TER
US$000 US$’000 US$’000
BTE2HH Reportable segment
— REINFEF WA — Revenue from external
customers 18,782 9,620 28,402
BT E2WD HEF Reportable segment profit 15,034 3,544 18,578

BAE B IR A R A A
—E-TERERE
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

#H £ 200996308 1E /<1 A
Six months ended 30 June 2009

[2 % EZ R
B& 77 70 % H i % i Et
Rheumatic
specialty
prescription
western Other
pharmaceuticals  pharmaceuticals Total
FET FET TET
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
(RIEER) (REEER) (REEZ)
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
AT 2o Eb Reportable segment
— KRB E P HIA — Revenue from external
customers 14,560 6,282 20,842
BT 2o i A Reportable segment profit 11,438 2,745 14,183

AR B &S D AR R A ) AR BR B S
REBNAEETEZMHBENYER

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconciled to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in

W the financial statements as follows:
B ZE2010F6H B £2009F6H
308 1k <A A 308 1E /5@ A
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2010 2009
Fxx FET
US$’000 US$’000
(CREE&EZ)
(Unaudited)
st | X g5 18 Profit or loss
BT 2D = Reportable segment profit 18,578 14,183
H At R o Bid e A Other income not allocated 940 475
HEfARNEEHZ Other expenses not allocated (12,824) (10,288)
B 7 X AN Finance costs (347) (304)
& BT 15 R A i A Profit before income tax 6,347 4,066

R E E2010F6H30H L@ A+ A&
W A& EI17% (2009F6 5304 -
14% K £ 2 1%) TH KRB A [ E b %88 R )
DEHFE—REF - RMER  AKHE
B 5 MW kT8 2 23% 5K B R % & F (2009
F12A31H : 14%) o

During the six months ended 30 June 2010, 17% (30 June
2009: 14%, unaudited) of the Group’s revenue depended on a
single customer in the “other pharmaceuticals” segment. As at
the reporting date, 23% of the Group’s trade receivables was
due from this customer (31 December 2009: 14%).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s revenues are divided into the following
geographical areas:

B Z£2010F #H £ 20094

6A30H It 6H30H 1k

~ME A 7~ E A

Six months Six months

ended 30 June ended 30 June

2010 2009

TEx FET

US$°000 US$'000

CRggsE=z)

(Unaudited)

FE(F &) PRC (domicile) 27,961 20,481
AN Overseas 441 361
28,402 20,842

BRI RAE TIARMRB A E
ERNUEREE ARARNFEE
HEEMAIAOREZERAR  mMA
SEEEM T RITMER  NEED
TELERTEBRBRURFE it
B BB B RS R ESR R
DEIFFRENREN S WRIEAEHE
B EEEIR o

RAERE AEENAEFRRPE
ERFHMNPE -

B B B IR IR A
—T-TERHRE

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The Company is an investment holding company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands where the Group does not
have any activities, the Group has the majority of its operations
and workforce in the PRC, and therefore, PRC is considered
as the Group’s country of domicile for the purpose of the
disclosures as required by IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.

Almost all of the non-current assets of the Group were located
in the PRC in both periods.
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6. K&EHRA 6. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
REBMKLEGHHEHNBRTY S E The Group’s profit from operations has been arrived at after
1§ charging:

B £2010%F # £ 2009%F
6H30H Lt 6H30H 1t
~E A ~1E A
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2010 2009
TEx FET
US$’000 US$'000
(R EZ)
(Unaudited)
% Z R0 B & Auditors’ remuneration 83 5
B BREITHIIREAEM ST Less: Amount incurred in connection with
the issue of shares (66) —
FTAIE 2 1) A% BUAD B & Auditors’ remuneration charged to
profit or loss 17 2
M- BERIETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 484 423
T b B R 8 Amortisation of land use rights 29 24
E 5 U G I8 B Provision for impairment of trade
receivables 242 72
H b i e 5K I8 (B B Provision for impairment of other
receivables 14 9
N B 1R - JFER Exchange loss, net 18 17
BRAMIZMTEK AR Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses 9,728 6,564
T RBFHLEHAERY  Operating lease charges in respective of
land and building 76 82
B Research and development costs 111 94
BEEWE BMENMRHEEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 17 4
REFERE Provision for obsolete inventories 15 —
mEEEME Write off of intangible asset - 15
BTN (BIEESHN) Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration)
TERES Wages and salaries 2,667 2,103
TE R K EH & Defined contribution plan 168 102
2,835 2,205
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7. BBEAR 7. FINANCE COSTS

B Z2010F B = 20094
68308 i1t 6H30H 1k
ANE A 7~ E A
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2010 2009
Fxx FET
US$°000 US$'000
(R EZ)
(Unaudited)

ARNAFRNEZHEE ZRTT Interest on bank borrowings wholly
BEEF B repayable within five years 391 304

ST AERIRZEARI  Less: Interest capitalised included in
lps! construction in progress (44) —
347 304

BB KRB % F | %&4.23% (200946 A
308 : 0% (R &&FZ)) BRI o

8. FIEHAX

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 4.23%

per annum (30 June 2009: nil%, unaudited).

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

B Z£2010F B Z=20094F
6H30H 1t 6H30H 1+
{8 A 7~ & A
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2010 2009
FTER TET
US$’000 US$'000
(REEEZ)
(Unaudited)
EHIRIE Current tax
— PEPEMER — PRC Enterprise Income Tax 1,318 551
BT IR Deferred tax
— TEHFT 15 B (P 5E23) — Withholding Income Tax (note 23) = 145
1,318 696

7 o B 7 A 10 FE 3R 0% e BB B 42
5 40 B E B B T R A MR B R 1T
B PR B R 1 54

B B B IR IR A
—T-TERHRE

Tax on assessable profits arising in the PRC has been
calculated at the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the tax

jurisdiction in which the Group operates.



MRk BT EE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

8.

Fr & i b8 < ()

RIE2007F3A16HE+E 2B A RK
RAREBRBHOBE  EHREMAE M
SNE 2 (BRI IR P ZEFTSF R33% HHH)
R EMEH(REMEHDM
% B2008F1A1H 2 £ — A25% M
BERZEEREMENANEMINEG b
B 1b % P13 B R B2008F1 A1H B 5
AFEZRH—ILEEY °

o Heh—REM B AR EPHERTE
BRI ¥ - B2010F 1 B1H Al
ZEEBRLEMBHE  R1I5%HEH
7 (200946 4308 : 25%) °

AEBETHEBRARRIIBEEDLE
RB(PESNEHHRE D EMINE KA
BRZE) ZFRARERBEENFED
MBERENEEENFERL  E—M
F_FRHBEEMAEHR F=ZEF0F
BB MRS -

RIEP B L - R2008F1A1H 4 -
OB ERDNMRMNELNRED
KNI EH MBI - KEE
2@ ABEINHEE A% o

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Pursuant to the tax law passed by the Tenth National People’s
Congress on 16 March 2007, the new PRC Enterprise Income
Tax (“EIT”) rates for domestic and foreign enterprises in China
which were charging at an EIT rate of 33% are unified at 25%
with effect from 1 January 2008; the EIT rate for domestic and
foreign enterprises in China which were charging at preferential
rates will increase gradually to 25% in 5 years with effect from
1 January 2008.

In addition, one of the subsidiaries has been certified for high
and new technology enterprises in the PRC and enjoyed a
preferential enterprise income tax rate of 15% starting from 1
January 2010 (30 June 2009: 25%).

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are wholly-owned foreign
enterprises in accordance with the Income Tax Law of the
PRC for Enterprise with Foreign Investment and Foreign
Enterprises and are entitled to full exemption from EIT for two
years and a 50% reduction in the following three years
thereafter starting from the first profit making year after
offsetting prior years’ tax losses.

Under the New PRC Tax Law, withholding tax is levied on the
foreign investor in respect of dividend distributions arising from
a foreign investment enterprise’s profit earned after 1 January
2008. The applicable rate of withholding tax for the Group is
5%.
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B R R AR BT EE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

8. FrB MBI (&) 8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
MBRZMEEFOEEDT: Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit is
as follows:
B Z£20105F B 20094
6H30H It 6H30H 1k
NE A 7~ & A
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2010 2009
TEx FET
US$°000 US$'000
(REEEZ)
(Unaudited)
B P15 15 Al % ) Profit before income tax 6,347 4,066
RBERRABEDEE RSN Tax on profit at the rates applicable to
M E T ENHIE the jurisdictions concerned 1,150 891
NTRIENRIETE: Tax effect of:
TAHMBERATIAREEE Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 288 103
AR AR IEEIE  Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
ORI previously not recognised (12 —
HMEER Tax exempt (108) (443)
%TZJS% & B B A A Y Effect of withholding tax on the
Al 5 B i A B 89 distributable profits of the Group’s PRC
iﬁ N & subsidiaries - 145
BN EFTIS R B X Income tax expense for the period 1,318 696
9. AXNTEEEAELZH 9. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY
KA A AR 4R 6 % F5,041,000% Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the
7L (20096 H30H : 3,370,000 JT(Fk #& Company of US$5,029,000 (30 June 2009: US$3,370,000,
#1%)) ¥ 633,0003 T (2009464301 : unaudited), a loss of US$633,000 (30 June 2009: nil,
(R ER) ZHEENARE) %R unaudited) has been dealt with in the financial statements of
RANBIR o the Company.
60 BAAE B BT IR AR A A
—T-TEPEEE



PSRRI EE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

10. R & 10. DIVIDENDS
B Z2010F B = 20094
68308 1t 6H30H 1k
NE A N E A
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2010 2009
Fxx FET
US$’000 US$'000
(R EZ)
(Unaudited)
HREMKRE: Dividend attributable to the period:
FH1.80F 1 22010F 5] Special dividend for 2010 of US1.80
fi% 2 (Fd ¥ a) cents per share (note a) 5,390 —
SR BRFEEGERE Dividend attributable to the previous
Bt g RER (D) financial year, approved and
recognised during the period (note b) — 3,340
5,390 3,340
@ IRIER2010F489H TR K (@ Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the
AREBANEBRABER  KQF General Meeting held on 9 April 2010, the Company
MERZREEIRRKREERESE declared a dividend of US1.8 cents per share, totalling
il - & 5H#95,390,000% 7T ° approximately US$5,390,000 to the then shareholders.
(o) RIE2009F1H19BRITHIR R K (o) Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the

FBEANTRARAERE FA5EH
EH E2008F12A31H IEEE 2
TR18.38E MM KREARE - &5
3,340,000% 7T °

General Meetings held on 19 January 2009, the Group
approved a final dividend of US18.38 cents per share,
totalling US$3,340,000 in respect of the year ended 31
December 2008.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

11.

12.

BEREXEF

H Z=2010F6A308 I <l B ERE A
BAZFAEDEREARBER ARG
4R & M) X HA R333,204,4290% B 3 17
f% 15 (B 2200946 A30H 1 7~ @ A :
300,000,0008%) 2 h#EFHHFHE - &
RN E E 4 B R20095F1 5 #E A
FBEH M FE20 ©

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the six
months ended 30 June 2010 period is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company and
on the weighted average number of 333,204,429 (six months
ended 30 June 2009: 300,000,000, unaudited) shares in issue
during the period on the assumption that the Group
Reorganisation as detailed in note 20 have been effective on 1
January 2009.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no
potential dilutive shares during the period.

R B AR ZE = 12. INTERESTS IN A SUBSIDIARY
20104 20094
6H30H 12H31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$’000 US$'000

®& Investments

K EMRE G - BKAE Unlisted shares, at cost 25,020 —

BRMES YR Z M E R F BN
31 -

Y () —MHBARNSERR
ENAREREE EFHELEHRN
REESEAALERSE -

B B B IR IR A
—T-TERHRE

Details of the subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period
are set out in note 31.

The amounts due from/(to) a subsidiary were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The directors consider
that the carrying amounts of the balances approximate their
fair values.



PSRRI EE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

13. W% -BMERR®E

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

rE Group
BEREE B RE BREANRE EEIR F5ay
Building Motor Furniture and Construction
and plant Machinery vehicles equipment  in progress Total
FET Fxr T FET FEr T
US$'000 Us$000 US$000 US$'000 Us$000 Us$000
200951718 At 1 January 2009
% Cost 10,059 3,827 426 600 43 14,955
REHE Accumulated depreciation (442) (550) (229) (201) - (1,422)
REFE Net carrying amount 9,617 3,277 197 399 43 13,5633
HZ2009F12A31H L FE  Year ended 31 December 2009
FYREFE Opening net carrying amount 9,617 3,277 197 399 43 13,533
fE XA Exchange adjustment 9 3 - 1 - 13
NE Additions 331 350 172 272 3,162 4,287
e Depreciation (325) (340) 91) (108) - (864)
BE Disposal - ®) © ®) - (18)
RERIRZER Transfer from construction in progress 424 12 - - (436) -
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 10,056 3,294 276 556 2,769 16,951
R2009F12A31H At 31 December 2009
AR Cost 10,824 4,072 574 769 2,769 19,008
2EHE Accumulated depreciation (768) (778) (298) 213) - (2,057)
REFE Net carrying amount 10,056 3,294 276 556 2,769 16,951
HZ2010F6A30H L #ifE  Period ended 30 June 2010
HYRmFE Opening net carrying amount 10,056 3,294 276 556 2,769 16,951
R Exchange adjustment 83 27 2 4 23 139
NE Additions 15 464 192 158 709 1,538
e Depreciation (195) (181) (35) (73) - (484)
BE Disposal - (12) (1) (4) - (17)
RERIRER Transfer from construction in progress 1,859 147 44 115 (2,165) -
HARREFE Closing net carrying amount 11,818 3,739 478 756 1,336 18,127
2010964308 At 30 June 2010
B Cost 12,787 4,692 795 1,030 1,336 20,640
2EHE Accumulated depreciation (969) (953) (317) (274) — (2,513)
BRHEFE Net carrying amount 11,818 3,739 478 756 1,336 18,127

#2010 6 5308 + BE ™ 18 A3,126,000
EncE TEFREE K FE#E(2009F
124318 : 9,608,000% Jt) & & 1 & 1
BIRTHERBITEEMNER -

As at 30 June 2010, certain building and plants with a carrying
amount of US$3,126,000 (31 December 2009: US$9,608,000)
were pledged to secure the banking facilities and bank

borrowings.
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HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

14, i fE A # 14. LAND USE RIGHTS
rE Group
20105 2009%F
6H30H 12H31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FTEx FET
US$’000 US$'000
BB BT AREFE: Outside Hong Kong, held on:
— A8ZEGBFE — Leases between 48 to 56 years 2,442 2,451
BETARBEER Less: Current portion included in current
mEE D assets (53) (53)
FFAER BN E EHY Non-current portion included in non-
EmBE S current assets 2,389 2,398
20105 20094
6H30H 12 A31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$°000 US$'000
FHERFE A Opening net carrying amount 2,451 2,070
NE Additions — 427
HFREBHEAX Amortisation charge for the period/year (29) (48)
& X 3 & Exchange adjustment 20 2
FAREEFE Closing net carrying amount 2,442 2,451
IREERRE Gross carrying amount 2,612 2,501
ZET Y Accumulated amortisation (170) (140)
REFE Net carrying amount 2,442 2,451
201056 A30R + & THRE (A /824,000 As at 30 June 2010, certain land use rights with a carrying
% 7£(2009F12 A31H : 2,024,000 ) amount of US$824,000 (31 December 2009: US$2,024,000)
EEFERRITRHE PR - were pledged to secure the banking facilities.
64 BAAE B BT IR AR A A
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HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

15. B & E 15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

rE Group
FExT

US$'000
20091 H1H At 1 January 2009
DN Cost 6,917
ZET Y Accumulated amortisation (118)
REFE Net carrying amount 6,799
H Z2000F12A31H I FE Year ended 31 December 2009
FHEREFAE Opening net carrying amount 6,799
NE Addition 874
& X, 38 & Exchange adjustment 5
BE Disposals (15)
FREMFE Closing net carrying amount 7,663
72009412 5318 At 31 December 2009
DN Cost 7,781
2T #E Accumulated amortisation (118)
RHEFE Net carrying amount 7,663
B Z£20105F6H30H L HIMAE Period ended 30 June 2010
BYIEREFE Opening net carrying amount 7,663
NE Addition 420
b 5 3 & Exchange adjustment 63
BMAREREFE Closing net carrying amount 8,146
R2010F6H30H At 30 June 2010
DN Cost 8,265
EXag: 3! Accumulated amortisation (119)
REFE Net carrying amount 8,146
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B R R AR BT EE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

15.

16.

EmEEE(E) 15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
BREEAERRABERMEE Hi Intangible assets represent intellectual property rights (“IPR”)
MABER(ANBER]D EERAEZ acquired/developed for the pharmaceutical technology. The
EHBERERERECAN  HAAE% directors consider these IPRs have indefinite useful lives as
ENAHBERITEHREAENEE there is no foreseeable limit on the period of time over which
WERAROBRS - SLAFEERTR the IPR in pharmaceutical industry is expected to provide cash
—ER I R AR K B AN E 4B - 1 B Gh % flows. These IPR can be renewable in a period of time at
AJAEEET o minimal cost and the products are continuing in the market.
MAMBERRE EEFREEETY If the IPR becomes impaired, the carrying amounts of the
AW MBEERS c BREAHD asset should be written down or written off immediately to
ABEEITZETEE ERESEH expense. IPR with indefinite useful lives is not amortised and
BEEFRETRENR  MEETR are tested for impairment annually at each financial year end
FTNERG AN BREE TR RE - or more frequently if there are indications that IPR with
BIJ 52 A8 27 30 M AT R E DRI o indefinite useful lives might be impaired.
[GES 16. GOODWILL
xE Group
2010 20094
6H30H 12A31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FTExn FET
US$°000 US$'000
IREE Carrying amount 6,824 6,824

REBER005FKNBER LERES
RAr([E)E ] RBESE ORI
BERDBRTRIEAL]D - ZEXFH A
BetiARk-

AEBESFRBAEETHERNA
B REERERE #5E RTHE
TR o

B B B IR IR A
—T-TERHRE

The Group acquired Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (“Ningbo Liwah”) and Lansen Medicine (Shenzhen)
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Lansen”) in year 2005. These
transactions have been accounted for by the acquisition
method of accounting.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment at each
financial year end, or more frequently if there are indications
that goodwill might be impaired.



B R R AR BT EE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

17. & 17. INVENTORIES
rxE Group
20104 20094
6H30H 12H31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$’000 US$'000
R Raw materials 1,602 1,339
£ 8 5 Work-in-progress 577 647
2K Finished goods 2,425 1,866
4,604 3,852
2 HEFEIRKASE - All inventories are stated at cost.
18. ES R Htt BN E 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
RE Group
20104 20094
6H30H 12A31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$’000 US$'000
B 5 e WK IR Trade receivables 17,958 13,822
W EBIEW TR R (E M  Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables (1,864) (1,672)
16,094 12,150
JE W = % Bills receivables 4,996 4,984
BoREWHENLERKRERE  Trade and bills receivables 21,090 17,134
TEAT R R H A B W 3B Prepayments and other receivables 3,525 3,458
24,615 20,592
LANSEN PHARMACGEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 67
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

18. EZ K HAb B W H (&)

ZAYN

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Company

20104 20094

6H30H 12A31H

30 June 31 December

2010 2009

Fxx FET

US$’000 US$’000

B RIE Prepayments 9 16
EFRE BEHREMERZENE The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and

HEHEQNRERS - other receivables approximates their fair values.

AEEHEK R4 FOXFHEEHL
THEP

REZRAH  AEENE SR WA

The Group has a policy of allowing an average credit period of
90 days to its customers.

Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade

NEWEBENRR DTN T and bills receivables of the Group is as follows:
20104 2009%F
6H30H 12H31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FTEx FET
US$’000 US$'000
Q0HZL AT 90 days or below 19,800 13,725
91H-180H 91-180 days 1,290 3,409
21,090 17,134

AEBEZESRUREBTEAEE
1,851,000 7T (2009412 A31H : 941,000
EXTU)MERFER RS BB HE
AL E BB IR B R - BLREY
RE2RITF AL ELHER
i REBELR ARAEER
B BARZETERELEE BS
EREEYTESEAEE MAEKRKAR
WARR 2 HYE - NEE L EHZF
R AEMERR -

B B B IR IR A
—T-TERHRE

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of US$1,851,000 (31
December 2009: US$941,000) which are past due as at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. These relate to a number of independent
customers of whom there is no recent history of default.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.
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HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

18.

B 5 K Hith fE WROE ()

AEBNEBBRELRRENESE
WRBBAHTEAT :

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The Group’s ageing analysis of past due but not impaired
trade receivables is as follows:

20105 20094

6H30H 12H31H

30 June 31 December

2010 2009

FEx FET

US$’000 us$'000

#HI1H 290H Past due over 1-90 days 1,250 941
B HEI91H = 2750 Past due over 91-275 days 601 —
1,851 941

AEBEZHRWABNRBERE BN E
BERWAT

The movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

20105 20094
6H30H 12H31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
TExn FET
US$’000 US$'000
B/ FH) At beginning of the period/year 1,672 2,563
b 5 3 & Exchange adjustment 14 2
B 5 M W IB R R E B Provision for impairment of trade
receivables 242 50
BAETAURE M SR £ % Amounts written off as uncollectible (64) (943)
X FXR At end of the period/year 1,864 1,672

£t B 5 MR R /Y R E B (R R
B H) B 5 MR IR Y B o M8 Bl R
B RIS N BREAEN TP -
ERHYEUKRIBBRYATHE - KE
B E LS ERFATAERR -

20106 308 + H th & I 5% 18 &9 R
1B B 1% /51,360,000 7T (20094F12 A 31
H:1,335000% 70) EER AA T E
HR R Bl fE W SR TE - B R A% E R K
S N e © @ o N N S i 2 :377
ZEERFHEMERS -

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables is a
provision for individually impaired trade receivables. The
individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers that
were in financial difficulties and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

As of 30 June 2010, a provision for impairment of other
receivables of US$1,360,000 (31 December 2009:
US$1,335,000) was recognised for certain long outstanding
receivables as these receivables are not expected to be fully
recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

19. BERREZEY 19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReRkBeEBYRENTIER: Cash and cash equivalents include the following components:
RE b N
Group Company
20104 20094F 20104 20094
6H30H 12H31H 6830H 12H31H
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
FEx F3ET FEx F3ET
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
Re RIRITER Cash and bank
balances 31,150 4,855 14,061 —
SR-EIER-ERCE Short term time
deposit 10,428 — = _
A AR ITIER Less: pledged bank
deposits (4,874) (800) - —
ReMBReEEY Cash and cash
equivalents 36,704 4,055 14,061 —

BARITZRERE S EETERAE
ST BRI R A - ST BRI
81717 52 T3 ) SR R 2. o

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rates. Short term time deposits are placed with
banks and earn interest at market interest rates.

201056 A30H K&2009412 A31H &Y K
HIRITF R R AL B IFRITF K
EREETHETRE -

R2010F6H30R * A5 B M IRTRIR
& 4 # B 513,816,000 JT (2009412
A31H :4,737,000% 7T) MR A R &
TARBDFENRITEHTERAREL
BT  ARBEWIEBBRRLBHER -

B B B IR IR A
—T-TERHRE

Pledged bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to secure certain banking facilities as of 30 June 2010
and 31 December 2009.

As of 30 June 2010, included in bank and cash balances of
the Group was US$13,816,000 (31 December 2009:
US$4,737,000), of bank balances denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency.



B R R AR BT EE
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HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

20. A 20. SHARE CAPITAL
i&vig < §E| k-
Number of
shares Amount
FET
US$'000
EREEOIEILZERA  Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each
VEE Authorised:
M2009F 9108 (GE A At 10 September 2009 (date of
37 B HY) - 200912 H31 incorporation), 31 December 2009
H & 20106 A30H and 30 June 2010 20,000,000,000 200,000
BEITRETE: Issued and fully paid:
— 200974200949 H10H — Issue of share on
BT 10 September 2009 1 —
7 20094F12 A31H %2010 At 31 December 2009 and
F1H1H 1 January 2010 1 —
— REEEEHEmET — Issue of shares pursuant to Group
R 153 Reorganisation 299,999,999 3,000
—RERAREE — Placing and public offering 100,000,000 1,000
— 1T{ B KA Ao A% 42 — Exercise of over-allotment option 15,000,000 150
720106 H30H At 30 June 2010 415,000,000 4150

AR B FA2009F9 8 10H s i A 32 0 J&
F & K A200000000% T O A
20,000,000,0008% f& 17 + E 13 iz 10 %
BN EERRAAEETEEERR S
ZAEERHEEFRB)ERAR - ZAF
BAEBEITREBRAFI(BIEE %
BV E#IERAF] °

P2010F4 8218 » 299,999,0990% & M
H{ECOIETTMRMH BT - IEAIRE
EEEAWERE R BBYIE BT
R A B RAE -

72010454 7H * 100,000,000/ & A%
BO.0IX T AR A BB RIBEE
BRAFEETAET  SRIFESIE
T(RHEED AR ARFABRHR
BAEBARSMERARER LD

The Company was incorporated on 10 September 2009 with
authorised share capital of US$200,000,000 divided into
20,000,000,000 shares of which 1 share was allotted which
was then transferred to Cathay International Pharma
Manufacture & Distribution (China) Limited, an immediate
holding company of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“Lansen
Pharmaceutical BVI”), on the same date.

On 21 April 2010, 299,999,999 shares of US$0.01 each were
issued in consideration for the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Lansen Pharmaceutical BVI pursuant to the
Group Reorganisation.

On 7 May 2010, 100,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each
of the Company were issued at HK$3.91 by way of placing
and public offering (“Share Offering”). On the same date, the
Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
For the six months ended 30 June 2010

20. B4 (48)

21.

R2010F5F28H » BEAMAREEITE -
1% & [%3.9178 JT i — 25 #1715,000,000
% & W& E E0.01E T R 1) o

ERABRTHNERPEMBEITERE
RIRB RN A BHERMA

R2009F12A31H » AEBEMBR AR K
BB EBVIMNERITR B R KA -

(R
rEE

R EBERREBEEZERNEED
ZHE o

AEREBERRERTEEREPNHE -
HABEHBARMNEN D EETAD
IKfFERERRP -

ERFEREBERRBEINENERF
MM BHRERNELEZR -

B B B IR IR A
—T-TERHRE

20.

21.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

On 28 May 2010, an over-allotment option was exercised and
a further 15,000,000 shares of US$0.01 each were issued at
HK$3.91 per share.

All the shares issued during the period rank pari passu with
the then existing shares in all respect.

The share capital of the Group as at 31 December 2009
represented the issued and paid up share capital of Lansen
Pharmaceutical BVI.

RESERVES
Group

The share premium represents the excess over the nominal
value for shares allotted.

The statutory reserve represents appropriation of profits of the
PRC subsidiaries to non-distributable reserve fund account as
required by the relevant PRC statue.

The exchange equalisation reserve represents exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries.
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21. fif e (&)

21. RESERVES (Continued)

AN E] Company
% 15 3% & ZitER et
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
FE7T F=ET FET
US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
MR2009F9H108 (AL At 10 September 2009
HEHR) (Date of incorporation) — — —
1T 0 (B 3E20) Issue of shares (note 20) — — —
HBEENETRS Transaction with owners — — —
MR2009F12 4318 & At 31 December 2009 and
2010F1A1R 1 January 2010 — — —
BESEEHZEITRG Issue of shares pursuant to
Group Reorganisation 22,020 — 22,020
21T 0 (MY 7E20) Issue of shares (note 20) 56,571 — 56,571
M AT X Share issue expenses (4,660) — (4,660)
B& 2. (Pt 5£10) Dividend (note 10) (5,390) — (5,390)
HBEENETRS Transaction with owners 68,541 — 68,541
HNEE Loss for the period — (633) (633)
HRE2EKABE Total comprehensive income
for the period — (633) (633)
#2010 6A30H At 30 June 2010 68,541 (633) 67,908
LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 73
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22. 8 & 22. BORROWINGS
rE Group
20104 2009%F
6H30H 12H31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$’000 US$'000
IRITER: Bank loans:
1F A Within one year 443 4,039
o4 In the second year - 1,340
EIE F5F In the third to fifth year = 9,067
ANSFANEEEE Wholly repayable within 5 years 443 14,446
MERINBEHNHEMBEES Other borrowings due within one year 7,748 4,842
W AR FE RSB RIE Less: amount due for settlement within
one year (8,191) (8,881)
AMFREZENHMR Amount due for settlement after one year - 10,407
(e Represented by:
ARBEE Borrowings in RMB 8,191 9,969
EnEE Borrowings in US$ - 9,319
8,191 19,288
REBEHNBEERRE: The Group's borrowings included:

(0

(i)

R2009F12A831H IR 1T E R A
1,904,000 7T * A& B {7 R
BB ENE—ELEEAT
WREEAKTESR - B ER2010
FRH AUAAREEERZ WA
KBPBEARBITIEMHARE
BEEMEFTE:

2009128310 A R 17 B &
1,758,000 7T * HASEA — XK
B8 AR E R o B XA R20124F
B AUARKERE  WAEK
BABEAREBITEMHARKERE
E ARG E

BB EZERARA A

SE-EERHRE

0

(it

bank loan of US$1,904,000 as at 31 December 2009
which was secured by a first priority legal charge over
the land and plant of the Group situated in China. The
loan matured in 2010 and was repayable in RMB and
carried interest at RMB borrowing rate as declared by
the People’s Bank of China;

bank loan of US$1,758,000 as at 31 December 2009
was guaranteed by a subsidiary of the Group. The loan
was fully repaid in 2010 and was repayable in RMB and
carried interest at RMB borrowing rate as declared by
the People’s Bank of China;
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22. 16 E (&)

)

(iv)

(vi)

M2009F12A310 B R 1T & &
1,465,000 7T * A S B — KK
BARER WAKREEMCRG
EHNmEMEtHNE—ELET
FREEAIEE R - B HAERK2010
FHE  BUAREBEE TH
KBHFBRARBITEMOARE
BEEFMEFTE:

72009412 A31H £9,319,0003 7T
MIRITEZ > AEEBEBVINE
EREBURAESEEMHER
AIMEERNZIEE R EESHRL
BERGD WHAREBENEQA
BR - ZERAUETMETE
B U AR AGBEERTRERE
A A RITR ZEHFE IN2% 9 | &
B B RBHW0I0FREF
DEAE IR

2010968308 * H443,0003 7T
MITER B EZBULE=H
BR ASETNTHBMWEBEEERE
AR —77 1R £ 58 £ 443,000
T Z & ¥ R (20099128318 ¢
) o ZE A R2011F I H I A
A R (E 8 K I£5.31% 1) F F
KB &

R2010F6A30H & H th & & (BN
M BB R BEHIRE R
5,613,0003 7T (2009F 12 A31H :
1,040,000 7T) + 0 A 3K 38 4R 17
TR AEM G- R2010F6A30
B H#{& & A2135,000% JT
(2009412 A31H : 3,802,000
TTREMBEREMNREE
WEER - ZEBER —FRNE
B AAAREBEE -

22. BORROWINGS (Continued)

)

(iv)

(vi)

bank loan of US$1,465,000 as at 31 December 2009
was guaranteed by a subsidiary of the Group and
secured by a first priority legal charge over the plant and
land of the Group situated in China. The loan matured in
2010 and was repayable in RMB and carried interest at
RMB borrowing rate as declared by the People’s Bank
of China;

bank loan of US$9,319,000 as at 31 December 2009
was secured by all fixed and floating charges over
assets and undertakings of Lansen Pharmaceutical BVI,
and guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Group. The loan
is repayable in US$ and Hong Kong Dollars (“‘HK$”) and
carries interest at 2 percent above the London Interbank
Offered Rate and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
respectively. The loan was fully repaid in 2010;

bank loan of US$443,000 as at 30 June 2010 was were
secured by an independent third party. The Group also
provided a counter guarantee to the same party for an
amount of US$443,000 in case there is default in
repayment (831 December 2009: nil). The loan will mature
in 2011 and is repayable in RMB and carries interest at
5.31% per annum; and

other borrowings of US$5,613,000 as at 30 June 2010 (31
December 2009: US$1,040,000) represented the
discounted bills with recourse and were secured by the
pledged bank deposits. Other borrowings of
US$2,135,000 as at 30 June 2010 (31 December 2009:
US$3,802,000) represented the discounted bills with
recourse and were unsecured. These borrowings
matured within one year and were repayable in RMB.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
INTERIM REPORT 2010
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22. \HE (&) 22. BORROWINGS (Continued)
REEHMERMENT The effective interest rates at the reporting date were as
follows:
Fl =
Interest rates
20105 2009%F
6H30H 12H31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
AR¥EE Borrowings in RMB 5.31% 4.32%
ELEE Borrowings in US$ — 2.08%
EERARTEFRNEEEREA R The directors consider the carrying amount of the bank loans
(EREEZIE approximates their fair values.
23. IREH IR 23. DEFERRED TAX
REE Group
20104 20094
6H30H 12 A31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
SFESE FET
US$’000 US$’000
B FH) At beginning of the period/year 394 122
FEHAEH Withholding income tax
— FFABEEE — Charged to profit or loss - 325
— B/ FRIA — Paid during the period/year = (53)
B ER At end of the period/year 394 394
KAFE] Company
20106 A30H K2009F 12 A31H + K As at 30 June 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company
NaE AT E RE AR o did not have any material temporary differences.
76 BAE B EEIERB R DA
Er S
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24. ES R Ht B FRIE 24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
rE Group
20104 20094
6H30H 12H31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$’000 US$'000
= N Trade payables 5,456 4,610
EREE Bills payables — 559
ZHRENFBNEMNEE  Trade and bills payables 5,456 5,169
HiEMRIBE R ESFAIE  Other payables and accruals 5,438 7,812
10,894 12,981
AN E] Company
20104 20094
6830H 12H31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FEx FETT
US$’000 US$’000
FEETFRIE Accruals 317 —
A2 Z B H A% - 20106 H30H & Based on invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade and
2009F12H31H  AEBME HEN K bills payables of the Group as at 30 June 2010 and 31
BREMZENRE T T : December 2009 is as follows:
20104 20094
6H30H 12H31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$’000 US$'000
90K AT 90 days or below 3,070 2,821
91K 2180k 91-180 days 1,062 1,422
181K £2365K 181-365 days 838 450
{8 #3365k Over 365 days 486 476
5,456 5,169
LANSEN PHARMACGEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 77
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24,

25.

26.

BEZNEMESREGE 24

72009F 12 A31H + JE 1 F #559,000
ENLUNCERBRTEREIEE -

EERAESEMNFENERERE
NABEMRSE -

BNYRAMBATNNKIER 25

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2009, bills payable of US$559,000 were
secured by the pledged bank deposits.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade
payables approximates to its fair value.

AMOUNT DUE TO A FELLOW
SUBSIDIARY

REIE A E}Jﬂqﬂ BB RARENR The amounts due were unsecured, interest free and repayable
& o $ B EESINERE on demand. The directors consider that the carrying amounts
HBAREBERE of the balances approximate their fair value.
Bt 75 AR I 26. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
R TH N RIE Operating lease commitment
xE Group
20104 2009%F
6H30H 12318
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FTEx FET
US$’000 US$'000
RETATRECEHON Future minimum rental payable
REFEESHSHT under non-cancellable operating lease
are as follows:
1F A Within one year 39 62
2FE5%F Between two and five years 76 —
115 62

AEBENLEROERETYE- A
¥ & BB = F(2009F12A318 : 1
F) AR ERBPRAEEMERAE
TEHFBENBEHEEEEMRY - %
EHRHMTBETARAEE -

BEBBEERARAF
—T—TERERE

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of three years (31
December 2009: 1 vyear), with options to renew the lease
terms at the expiry dates or at days as mutually agreed
between the Group and the respective landlords. None of
these leases includes any contingent rentals.
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26. Bt # & iE (&)

26. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS (Continued)

KREHNEAE(E) Operating lease commitment (Continued)
bS] Company
2010 20094
6H30H 12A31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$°000 US$'000
RIE T AT RUEE A S HA Future minimum rental payable
ARFEENHEESAT under non-cancellable operating lease
are as follows:
1F R Within one year 6 —
2FE5F Between two and five years 1 —
17 —
BAREE Capital commitment
K& Group
20105 20094
6H30H 12A31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$°000 US$'000
S RETH R EANRAYE . Capital commitments authorised and
contracted for:
RN o E R ) B Development of IPR 881 916
BELEK Construction and equipment 1,298 444
2,179 1,360

MR2010%6 A30H 2009412 A31H » K&

DBV B R E

2010 and 31 December 2009.

The Company had no capital commitments as at 30 June

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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27. EENHBBRSHFALH 27. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND

#r A FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
BEEHMN Directors’ remuneration
ENEENTARRGESNEHHBREN The aggregate amount of remuneration paid and payable to
N the directors of the Company are as follows:
He
R BEA EBIREFR
we EWERN HEIH R ot
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits benefit plans
Fees in kind contributions Total
FEx FEx FEx FEx
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000

#2010%6H30H 1t Six months ended 30

A8 A June 2010
WITES: Executive director:
Elli= Liu Xiao Dong - 34 8 42
"= Xu Jun - 59 11 70
EMITES Non-executive director:
Stephen Burnau Stephen Burnau Hunt
Hunt 10 — = 10
FEmE Lee Jin Yi — — — —
mE Tang Jun = — — _
e Tao Fang Fang = — — _
= (T2 Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca = = — —

WU IFEHMITEE:  Independent non-
executive director:

Robert Peter Robert Peter Thian

Thian 9 = = 9

bR 50 45 Chan Kee Huen,
Michael 7 — — 7

CIiERE Tang Chiu Ping,
Raymond 7 - = 7
33 93 19 145

BAAEBE SR IR IR A A

—E-TEARE
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27. EENHEERESHFALTH 27. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND

M (48) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)
ESH MR Directors’ remuneration (Continued)
e
2 Bh A R
we EYEF 5Tt 5K st
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  benefit plans
Fees in kind  contributions Total
FET F=ET F=ET F=ET
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
(REEEZ) (REEEZ) (REEEZ) (REEEZ)
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

HZE2009F6H30H Six months ended 30

WEXMEA June 2009
wmiTE=S: Executive director:
=3 Liu Xiao Dong — 23 2 25
"= Xu Jun — 32 2 34
EMITES Non-executive director:
Stephen Burnau Stephen Burnau Hunt
Hunt — — — _
FEmE Lee Jin Yi — — — —
58 Tang Jun — — — —
s Tao Fang Fang — — — —
=2 % Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca — — — —

WU IFEHMITEE:  Independent non-
executive director:

Robert Peter Robert Peter Thian
Thian — — — —
bR 5 15 Chan Kee Huen,
Michael — — — —
B A Tang Chiu Ping,
Raymond — — — —
— 55 4 59
LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 81
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27. EENHBHREFALHN
o ()

FEERESHFAL

hERSHFALTEEMUARTES
BENFHMFBEHR XD - B
BT=URaHFALOFHFBOT:

27. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals consisted of two directors of
the Company, details of whose remuneration are reflected in
the analysis presented above. Details of remuneration of the
remaining three highest paid individuals are as follows:

B Z2010F B F2009F

6H30H Lt 6H30H 1k

~ME A ~E A

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2010 30 June 2009

FEx FET

US$’000 US$'000

(R #EZ)

(Unaudited)

e EUKEWEF Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 138 56
RRAE FIET 8 Retirement benefit plans contributions 11 7
Bt Total 149 63

AP LR IR E T A 1A B B 0 A

The remuneration paid to each of the

above non-director

T#ERS individuals fell within the following bands
HZ2010F B =20094F
6H30H 1t 6H30H IE
~ME A 7~ & A
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2010 30 June 2009
TER FxT
US$°000 US$'000
(CREgeEZ)
(Unaudited)
Z — 128,000% 7T Nil — US$128,000 8 3

HA BEEFHRARETHRRETM
e ke

A AEREMEINHE TEEHE
MARERFMAL FRINAKRE
BN AREE RSB BRI AR 5 -

B B B IR IR A
—T-TERHRE

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the period.

No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or any
of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or compensation for loss of office

during the period.
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28. [ bz B IE 28. RISK MANAGEMENT

AEBEEREELERK BTN
ZRVGRAR ASENEREER
H@mns HESFETAF - EHE
BiERASENEHEFHNES

ME o
= &=k

AEENTESHEERRITEHRM
Re - BEHREMEBWKFTIA - HWIHAE
EReREEMBEHNRAEERR
BE ASENEERRIEXRAES
FEWRIA - IMAFHMRAL 2NN E
HOHMBREREBE W HEHAR
SEEEERBEREHEAEER
B EMSS -

RREEEERR AEEEEECFE
FERR EXNEKAREEEEER
B GEEHNEMEEBRE  AE
PR R AN R HE 1T B Y [ B B (B R -

M2010F6H30H © EN R IB B R+ -
H23% (2009F12 A31H : 14%) K g A &=
B KEP -

nBECEERRAR  TRHFLE
HMBIRTT -

RBE SRR

ARBEZERYBEENRDE R
fRE BIER REEAEENE  F -
EHRES R RBESERTR -

AEEBRBEBTRFER RITARAE
MEFHEERRE HSEEERANE
RReRE VNEYEREERAR
BN REE R R o

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
result from its operating and investing activities. The Group’s
risk management is coordinated at its headquarters in close
cooperation with the directors and focuses on actively securing
the Group’s short to medium term cash flows.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are bank balances and
cash and trade and other receivables, which represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position are net of allowances for
doubtful receivables, estimated by the Group’s management
based on prior experience and their assessment of the current
economic environment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has formulated a credit policy and delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

As at 30 June 2010, 23% (31 December 2009: 14%) of the
total receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks.

Liquidity risk

The directors of the Company have built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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28. A EIE(E)

REE S E k()

TRAMAEBIFTESBAGENHRT
EREZBAENFEE - TRIOREBEAEE
RAKBREENZFAHNEREE
AMRASRERE  BEMEMA
THREME °

28. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The tables include both interest
and principal cash flows.

KE Group
20106 H30H
30 June 2010
15 NF1ZE2H N F2E55F #at
Between Between
Within one one and two two and five
year years years Total
TER TER TER TER
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
STEIRTT M EAh  Interest-bearing bank and
B other borrowings 8,204 = = 8,204
ZHMEMFKIE  Trade payables 5,456 - - 5,456
E b fEAFFIA K Other payables and
FEETRIA accruals 5,438 - - 5,438
19,098 — — 19,098
200912 H31H
31 December 2009
15" NFIE2FE N TF2E5F et
Between Between
Within one  one and two two and five
year years years Total
FET F=T FET FET
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
SFERITM HM  Interest-bearing bank and
BE other borrowings 9,344 1,724 9,413 20,481
Z 5N AN Trade and bills payables
BT R E 5,169 — — 5,169
H b ERFFIA K Other payables and
J& &t R IE accruals 7,812 — — 7,812
FEfH A ZMEB A Amount due to a fellow
AIIAE subsidiary 311 — — 311
22,636 1,724 9,413 33,773
BEBBIEEARA R

—E-TEARE
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28. [ bz E 3 () 28. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

REE S E k()

TRFLARFBETESBHABENHRT
BREFHENFE - TRIOIREARF
RAFEREENREARNERERE
AMRASRERE  BEMEMA
THERE °

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows.

¥ N Company
20106 H30H
30 June 2010
1FR NF1ZE2F  NHF2&E5F #et
Between Between
Within one one and two two and five
year years years Total
FExx FEx FEx FEx
US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000
JE 5T R IB Accruals 317 - - 317
2009412 A31H
31 December 2009
1FEN NF1E2F N F2E5F HET
Between Between
Within one  one and two two and five
year years years Total
FET FExT FExT FExT
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FERKEB /AT Amount due to a subsidiary
KIA 16 — — 16
S L B Foreign currency risk

AEBRZXHEEMAZNINE AR B
RN ARAEENBARFAENK
MOEMEENBBEIUNZEWNER
AR BRIER R E -

K62 B B A SNEE SR BRER o AT
EREERNERR AKRAERFE
iR Z 8 S SN [ o

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure to
foreign currency risk as most of the financial assets and
liabilities held by the Group’s subsidiaries are denominated in
the respective functional currency of such subsidiaries.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.
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28. A EIE(E)

SES

AEEHRENMENEEHARTE
B AN 5 B 1 DA B R R 5T B MY (E IR
B - REEMRTHEERNXMER
RRE R 22 E - AEEB Y
EAL AN RS PR -

TXFRENGEREDN - DRERE
HMAFTETENNEEREE - 5
FBMNEREBEMS BRI HERR
BEHRAREENAESEREME
FEARBEMRE - ERMRAETE
IR AN BRE N EE B (E B50E B
ERH/TROEE ENREEEY
MEONEIEAEZ B -

1% E 7t T HE0R & + T FTA £
BRMEFHTE  AEE:

. #H =2009F12 A31H IF F E 89 %
F| K 722009412 A31H #9 R B %
F 2> 51 18 hnF 70,0003 T
FEHRASENZEEEEY
MR =R B R

o BRASDRBIA2009F12A31HE N,
S 4>70,0003E 7T ©

MR2010F6 A0 A EE 2 E I E T
MEEF B - M4 & B R2010F6H30H
W E AT RRE R -

AEEWEREESFFRIEARE
HABRAZEEEREEARHNR AN
ERBEAR BN R o

B B B IR IR A
—T-TERHRE

28. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with
floating interest rates. The interest rate and terms of repayment
of bank borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 22. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at
the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points lower/higher and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s:

o Profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 and
retained profits as at 31 December 2009 would increase/
decrease by US$70,000 respectively. This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its variable rate borrowings; and

o The Group’s equity as at 31 December 2009 would
increase/decrease by US$70,000, respectively.

The Group’s borrowings as at 30 June 2010 are subject to
fixed rates and therefore the Group does not have any
exposure to interest rates risk as at 30 June 2010.

The Group’s risk management reviews the capital structure on
a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the committee
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital.
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28. A EIE(E) 28. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
RERNEINEMEEREE Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
BZ category
BB MRAKRMEINERESR TS The carrying amounts presented in the statements of financial

MEERETRABEEMNEH -

position relate to the following categories of financial assets
and financial liabilities.

rxE Group
20104 20094
6H30H 12A31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$°000 US$’000
EWMEE Financial assets
B EWGRIE Loans and receivables:
B 5B FRIBE R Trade and other receivables
= A 23,631 18,769
HIRIEITFE R Pledged bank deposits 4,874 800
HeMReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 36,704 4,055
65,209 23,624
cREs Financial liabilities
IR AT BRI S B EE : Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
EE Borrowings 8,191 19,288
FENRZMH B AR RIE Amount due to a fellow subsidiary - 311
ESENFIER Trade and other payables
H b FET 5RIR 10,894 12,081
19,085 32,580
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For the six months ended 30 June 2010

28. A EIE(E)

RERNEINEREERAER
BME (R’

28. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category (Continued)

P N/NE| Company
20104 20094
6H30H 12A31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
TEx FETT
US$’000 US$000
TREE Financial assets
Bk EWGRIE Loans and receivables:
JFE L Bt /BB X B FRIB Amount due from a subsidiary 33,285 —
HeRReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 14,061 —
47,346 —
cHEasE: Financial liabilities
RHEE R A YIBE 2R B & - Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
JE A B B A B 5 IE Amount due to a subsidiary — 16
FE &R IE Accruals 317 —
317 16
EXRERE Capital management

AEFEBTEHEER  NBRAEENS
RBOFELKE RAREZELERNK
[EARFE  BEBATIREZRAER -
AREEREE KRB A009F12H31HE
SHERTE -

AEENEARBREGET(BEHE
RERENEE) B hkBA2FEWR
BRAESHEARGBOEAR(ESE
BTER  RERREAN) -

AEERAGHNEBEBUMBEREETEE
AeB - ARBRELERRESH R
HEEEZRREH EEEARE
WIFHAE - BERFNFABEARRE
AEEFRERBEIRN TRRABESHE -
EREMERTERR  BHTHROKIHESR
ERE e

B B B IR IR A
—T-TERHRE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from 31 December 2009.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 22, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the
parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained
earnings.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its
overall financing structure. The Group manages the capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In other to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.



B R R AR BT EE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ=2010F6 A30A 1L/~ 8 A
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28. A EIE(E) 28. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
BEXREE(E) Capital management (Continued)
R ERARMERLEOT The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:
2010 20094
6830H 12A31H
30 June 31 December
2010 2009
FExx FET
US$°000 US$'000
faE Borrowings 8,191 19,288
e MIRTT4 R (BT 3E19) Cash and bank balances (note 19) (41,578) (4,855)
B Net debt (33,387) 14,433
T Equity 85,934 29,956
T iE A
EER R X Net debt to equity ratio N/A 48.2%
20. BEALRS 29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
B B E25 1 27F 4% B5 B1 B 38 A T BV R Apart from those transactions and balances with related
ERXGREERIN - PRAT B SR E A parties disclosed in notes 25 and 27, the following transactions
THEITTIRS: were carried out with related parties during the period:
B E20106F H £ 2009%F
6H30H 1t 6H30H 1t
~E A 7~ E A
Six months Six months
ended 30 June  ended 30 June
2010 2009
B 3 FTEx FET
Note US$’000 US$'000
(RgEEZR)
(unaudited)
LT Non-recurring:
JEW—RE ZWE AT Interest income receivable
M EKA from a fellow subsidiary (i) — 110
EN—KBEEKEAT Rental fees paid to fellow
HeBA subsidiaries (ii) (5) (38)
LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 89
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29.

30.

BEEALRZ (&)

() MERWBAARENERDE
WHRIBUA - ZEBEEZRHE SR
BEUAREENRITEE(HERW
BARER) - AEKBAREMH
7Y A A& R R & 22009412 A 31
HIEFERRER -

i) MAKEAELEMTORAE
ME - -BEREFZEEEMARF
AMBRRIXNOWER -

ARBIEFERR ULBEALRST
B REAEEKREARRBERERH
BRI AETT -

TEERABNFHARENTAR
AEENEHE  FRAEMZE27 -

TEFRERS

HEE E2009F12 4318 IEFE » 20084
12 318 W FE R B % B K 8 £ 20084
12ABEFENH KRB K B & 5
4140000 L hEMEEERENE
KRR B BEITHERBEBYIN TR
HEIE TN T BREN GCRmAEE
ZERVIE D R FEEFRD) -

B B B IR IR A
—T-TERHRE

20.

30.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(i) Interest income receivable from loan to a fellow
subsidiary. The loan was financed by the Group’s
borrowings from banker which was guaranteed by fellow
subsidiaries. The corporate guarantees provided by
fellow subsidiaries were released during the year ended
31 December 2009.

(ii) Fees paid to fellow subsidiaries for rental of office
premises, hotel and meeting room for daily operation of
the Group.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
above related party transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of
business.

Remuneration for key management personnel represents
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note
27.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the period ended 30 June 2009, the interim dividend
payable as of 31 December 2008 and final dividends in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2008 totaling
US$4,140,000 was settled by offsetting against the loans to
management and the issuance of ordinary shares of US$1
each in Lansen Pharmaceuticals BVI, which were previously
redeemed and held as treasury shares by Lansen
Pharmaceuticals BVI.
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31.

RRBMBELRE 215

RN E M B A F 20106 A30H &

2009F12 ASTEHMEFIBEW T :

31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 30 June 2010 and 31
December 2009 are as follows:

TR
BIBXR" ERTRBZRE AARFEN
=r: it B EMERFE BRED FTETER
Country/ Particulars of Effective
Place of issued and fully paid interest
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the
Name establishment registered capital Company Principal activities
EESTERER
Interests held directly
PAEBREZRAR AR REBREZHES 29,491,360k &R EE 100% & EEK
1ETZ2EBRND
Lansen Pharmaceutical The British 29,491,360 ordinary 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited Virgin Islands ~ shares of US$1 each
(“BVI”)
BEEAEER
Interests held indirectly
Horizon Network Limited EEEXES 1REEIETZ 100% IREEK
LRk G,
BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% Investment holding
US$1 each
Magnificent Worldwide RBEZES 1REEIETZ 100% & E#E K
Limited Ealian)
BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% Investment holding
US$1 each
Brilliant Manufacture Limited REBREZES 1REMBIETLZ 100% & EERKR
e alian)
BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% Investment holding
US$1 each
Flash Universal Limited EERLZHS 1RHEEIEXETZ 100% & &K
=Rl an)
BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% Investment holding
US$1 each
REBBRBERAF N 1REEIE T 100% &EER
TR
Point Kin International Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% Investment holding
HK$1 each

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31. XATMBAT 215 (&) 31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

AR
BIBXR" ERTRAZRE AARFEN

=x it B M ERFE BRED FTETER
Country/ Particulars of Effective
Place of issued and fully paid interest
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the

Name establishment registered capital Company Principal activities

BEsAER (8

Interests held indirectly (Continued)

SEEDERE ) B 1REENETZ 100% & B K
BRAA =il el

Liwah Plant Extract Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited HK$1 each

BB (BB ARAR BE 1R EEE T2 100% 1% EERK

TR

Lansen Pharmaceutical Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited HK$1 each

BAEBZECRIDBRAT [ A R #:29,498,0007T 100% & B2 %75

Lansen Medicine (Shenzhen) PRC RMB29,498,000 100% Pharmaceutical
Company Limited business

ERVEREFRAA A A R #236,000,0007T 100% %8 8 %75

(2009412 A31H * A
IR #135,000,0007T)

Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical PRC RMB236,000,000 100% Pharmaceutical

Company Limited (81 December 2009: business
RMB135,000,000)

ERVEEYRDREMER A R #28,000,000 (2009 100% %8 8% 7%

NG F12A318 : AR¥E
18,000,0007T)

Ningbo Liwah Plant PRC RMB28,000,000 100% Pharmaceutical
Extraction Technology (31 December 2009: business
Limited RMB18,000,000)

BRI BEFR AR ] A R #35,000,0007C 100% B BE ¥ 7%

(2009412 A31H * A
IR #10,000,0007T)

Ningbo Lansen PRC RMB35,000,000 100% Pharmaceutical
Pharmaceutical Company (81 December 2009: business
Limited RMB10,000,000)
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